
  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON JULY 15, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent    Present   Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen    X                   Jeffrey McKee                    X       
Vice Chair Rica Girardi      X                   Gil Armijo        _       _X  _        
Lynn Krigbaum      X                Kathy Dahnk      X          ____       
Vacant - Sunrise                                    Steve Berman      X  _                            
Mayor Smith        _       X _     Diane Tilton  _            _ X                  
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk and John Vuolo, Director of Parks and Recreation. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright Advertising, Crystal O’Donnell, Director of Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber of Commerce, Sheryl Smith, citizen, Stephanie Irwin, Councilmember, Karen Warsh , Epic Rides, Andy 
Suter, Epic Rides and Mike Wright, Blue Ridge School Superintendent. 
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
Committeemember Krigbaum said the Nature Center holds programs every other Saturday.  She said on 
Saturday, July 18, 2015 the topic would be fish.  She said the program would be held at Big Springs 
Environmental and the Nature Center.   
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD JUNE 17, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD JUNE 
17, 2015. COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Chairman Petersen said Committeemember Berman and Committeemember Mc Kee would be included in the 
budget subcommittee.  Barbara Ashley said June 2015 tax revenues had not been received, but said she would 
give an update on May 2015 numbers.  She said in May 2015 the Committee had a positive fund balance of 
$48,304.00.  She said the revenue over expenditures was $44,108.00.  She said the Committee is in the 
positive, and said the Committee is at ninety-six percent of the budget of revenue projections.  She said the 
expenditures are at 63% of the budget through May 2015.  She said the Committee had held off on some 
items to carry funds over to the 2015-2016 fiscal year, and said this does not reflect June 2015 expenditures.  
She said she anticipates the Committee closing with a positive fund balance of $28,000.00.  Chairman Petersen 
said carry over funds will go into a restricted fund, and said the Committee would have to go to Council for 
approval to spend the carry over funds.   
 
 
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING MIKE WRIGHT, BLUE RIDGE 
SUPERINTENDENT, REQUESTING FUNDING OF $2,500.00 FOR ADVERTISING ON THE MONUMENT/MARQUEE 
SIGN: 



 
Mike Wright said the funding would be for advertising on the new monument sign.  He said the current 
marquee had not been working for years and said there had been no funds to fix it.  He said there is an 
adjacent waste fund that allows improvements to properties the school does not own, but is adjacent to.  He 
said the property the sign is on had been donated to ADOT for the pathway.  He said the school does not own 
the property the sign is placed on, but said the school owns the adjacent property.  He said the funds would be 
used to purchase a marquee sign.  He said the school would partner with local businesses and give them a 
chance to advertise on the marquee and also provide an area on the sign for logos.  He said the Town would 
have a spot for the Town logo and be able to access the sign for advertising events and meetings.  He said it 
would be a good partnership and a good demonstration to the community of the school and the Town partner 
together.  He said he would like to make clear funds from the override and maintenance and facilities would 
be used on the new sign. He said funds for the sign would be from the adjacent waste, donations and 
partnering with local businesses.  Committeemember Krigbaum asked the cost of the new sign.  Mr. Wright 
said the sign would be $55,000.00.  He said the dimensions would be ten feet in width by five feet high and 
said it would have LED lighting.  He said the marquee would be programmable remotely. He said the sign went 
out to bid and a company out of Phoenix had the low bid.  He said he would have liked to have a local 
company, but said they school had to accept the lowest bid.  He said the low bid came in $20,000.00 lower 
than the next bid.  Ms. Ashley asked what funds would be used to maintain the sign.  Mr. Wright said there 
would be a service plan for seven years costing $1,700.00.  Committeemember Berman asked if the $2,500.00 
request would be a onetime deal or if the Committee would be asked annually for funding.  Mr. Wright said it 
would be a onetime request.  Committeemember Dahnk asked if businesses would be charged to be on the 
sign.  Mr. Wright said there would be a charge and said it would depend on the size of the advertisement.  He 
said large spaces would be $5,000.00 and smaller spaces would be between $1,000.00 and $1,500.00. 
Committeemember Krigbaum asked how the Town Manager felt about the sign.  Mr. Wright said Ms. Racette 
gave a positive response, and said it would be a good opportunity to support the school.  Committeemember 
Krigbaum said there had been an orange electronic sign on the Town jail property, and said it was used for 
advertising events.  She asked if the Town Manager had any plans for using the orange electronic sign or does 
the school sign replace the orange sign.  Mr. Wright said he did not know, and said he is not familiar with the 
orange electronic sign.  Councilmember Irwin asked if the sign would be visible by traffic from each side of the 
highway.  Mr. Wright said it would be.  He said it would be in the same location as the current sign.  
Commiteemember Krigbaum asked if the pathway had been taken into account.  Mr. Wright said it had been.  
Committeemember Krigbaum asked what the Town would receive for the $2,500.00.  Mr. Wright said the 
Town logo would be placed on the sign and the Town would have access to advertise Town events.  
Committeemember Krigbaum asked for clarification on the advertising of Town events.  Chairman Petersen 
said it would be used for any events being held in the Town, such as the Music Festival, Nature Center events, 
etc.  Committeemember Berman said it would be better language to give the Town and the Ad and Pro 
Committee access to promote events on the marquee.  Committeemember Krigbaum asked how often would 
there would be access to advertise and promote events.  Mr. Wright said there would not be a limit.  He said 
he would hope to make the school area the center of the community.  He said since he became the 
Superintendent the two most requested items to two fix at the school are the monument sign and to paint the 
school.  Sheryl Smith asked how the advertising on the sign would be done.  Mr. Wright said it would be 
scrolling advertisement and there would be no limit to the amount of text.  Chairman Petersen asked who 
would have control over the advertising content with other partners involved.  Mr. Wright said the district 
office and said there would need to be a Town representative and/or someone from the Ad and Pro 
Committee.  He said his only concern would be the content is appropriate and positive.  Commiteemember 
Krigbaum asked where the funds would come from in the budget.  Chairman Petersen said it would be funded 
from the local advertising line item.  Chairman Petersen asked Mr. Wright for his opinion on the tent art shows 
held in the school parking lot.  Chairman Petersen said the event is not a function of the Town or the Chamber 
and said it competes heavily with the brick and mortar businesses in Town. He said the Chamber receives a lot 



of grief over the tent sales.  He said it causes confusion because people think it is a Chamber event or a Town 
event and it is not sponsored by either. He said it is not an agenda item, and said he would not go in to 
anymore, but said he and Mr. Wright could talk later about this item.  Mr. Wright said he would explore the 
details and talk to his facilities director.  Chairman Petersen said he does want to support the school and not 
take any funds away from the school. Chairman Petersen asked the Committeemembers for their opinions on 
spending funds for the school sign.  Mrs. Smith said it would be a good opportunity.  Committeemember 
Dahnk said the Ad and Pro Committee is to advertise outside of the Town and said the funds should be spent 
more in advertising to bring people to the Town.  Mr. Vuolo said unfortunately when visitors are in Town they 
do not always know the events being held in Town and said it may not keep people in Town or encourage 
them to return if they do not find events that are happening.  He said the orange electronic sign had a great 
value in advertising events happening in Town.  Vice Chairman Girardi asked why the electronic sign is no 
longer in use.  Mr. Vuolo said the sign did not conform to the Town’s policies or codes and was illegal.  Vice 
Chairman Girardi said to move the electronic sign and put it on County property.  Chairman Petersen said the 
Committee could go to Town Council and request a change in the sign policy restrictions.  He said the orange 
construction sign is not very appealing, but said maybe it would look alright in the County.  Mrs. Smith said 
when people see the orange electronic sign they think about a red flag warning.  Mr. Vuolo said another good 
advantage of the school sign is that it is two-sided and situated at a stop light for viewing.  Chairman Petersen 
said he likes the sign and it extends the light post banners along the highway, but said he also agrees with 
Committeemember Dahnk on spending funds to bring people to the Mountain.   He said there is also a 
desperate need for locals and visitors already here to know what events and activities are happening.  
Committeemember Dahnk said very few of the small businesses would have the extra funds to be able to 
advertise on the school sign.  Mrs. Smith said the $2,500.00 is a great way to support the school.  
Committeemember Berman said he would like an agreement from the school stating the funding for 
advertising on the sign would be a onetime request and the Town and Ad and Pro Committee would be able to 
post events on the marquee for an indefinite period of time.  Mr. Wright said he would not incur legal expense 
writing up a contract, but said he would put in writing the requested language and agreement.  Ms. Ashley 
said future funding requests would have to be requested through legal action to the Committee.  Vice 
Chairman Girardi said the Committee would not want this to be a one year deal and next year be asked for 
additional funding to advertise on the sign.  Mr. Wright said it would not be a one year deal, and said he would 
put this item before the school board. He said this would be an ongoing agreement giving unlimited 
advertising access to the Town and Ad and Pro Committee and would be a onetime fee.  He said the uses 
would be stipulated in the agreement, and said going before the school board would make this a public 
record.  He said this way the agreement would be enforced when he was no longer with the district.  Vice 
Chairman Girardi asked if the Ad and Pro Committee would receive any kickback from funding the sign, and 
said it would appear the Town is giving the school money for a sign and what about all of the teachers that 
need raises and all the maintenance the school needs.  Mr. Wright said the teachers just received a three 
percent raise.  Vice Chairman Girardi said she would rather give the $2,500.00 to the art or music department. 
Committeemember Krigbaum said visitors come to enjoy the cool weather, but said one they are here they 
look for events and activities to do.  She said the local advertising is beneficial to visitors and locals.  Chairman 
Petersen said he agrees with notifying the locals of current events.   
 
 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE FUNDING OF $2,500.00 TO BLUE RIDGE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT FOR A WRITTEN AGREEEMNT FOR THE TOWN LOGO TO BE PLACED ON THE SIGN FOR THE TOWN 
AND THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE TO ADVERTISE EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES ON THE 
MARQUEE.  COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION AND THE MOTION CARRIED 3-2 WITH 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK OPPOSED AND VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI ABSTAINING.   
 



 
ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING EPIC RIDES REQUESTING FUNDING FOR 
THE TOUR OF THE WHITE MOUNTAINS: 
 
Andy Sutter said the 20th Annual Tour of the White Mountains would be held October 3, 2015 at PLAC&S. He 
said Epic Rides has a strong advertising campaign going on currently regarding the White Mountain Tour.  He 
said there would be added events this year.  He said they are expecting seven hundred riders this year 
compared to six hundred riders in 2014.  He said it would be a three day event starting on Friday, October 2nd.  
He said most of the activities take place on Saturday.  He said a new component added this year would be a 
bike packing ride.  He said riders would leave Friday afternoon and would ride for a few hours and then set up 
camp.  He said they would camp as a group and then would ride back in on Saturday morning finishing with 
the main riders.  He said there would be a mandatory meeting for all riders at PLAC&S on Friday the 2nd.  Karen  
Warsh said there are four different distance rides in addition to the bike packers. She said most of the riders 
would be from out of Town.  She said it would be a family friendly event for the entire weekend.  She said on 
Sunday the fire department would hold a pancake breakfast.  She said the target market for riders are mostly 
higher educated males between the ages of thirty to forty-nine years old and are married with children.  She 
said there would be a free kid’s ride on Saturday.  She said thirteen percent of the riders would be from 
outside Arizona and the majority of the riders are from Maricopa and Pima County.  She said for every rider 
they bring three other people with them.  She said fifty-nine percent of the riders stay for two to three nights.  
She said ninety-eight percent of the riders from last year say they plan to attend again in 2015.  Mr. Vuolo said 
he would like to have these statistics so he could share with the Town Council and other staff.  He said this 
event is a post season event in the shoulder season and is not part of the competitive circuit.  Ms. Warsh said 
Epic Rides is trying to draw people to the White Mountains during the shoulder season.  Chairman Petersen 
asked if a date for 2016 had been set yet.  Ms. Warsh said it would be the weekend of October 1, 2016. Mr. 
Sutter said he had been handling the marketing for the event.  He said the event is being advertised on 
Facebook, Instagram, Epicrides.com and by newsletter.  He said traditional print advertising is being done in 
magazines and newspapers, and said event posters were distributed to three hundred and fifty bike shops. He 
said flyers were mailed out to mountain bike events in Colorado, California, Utah, Arizona and New Mexico.  
Ms. Warsh said the Tour of the White Mountains is a great opportunity to showcase the scenic White 
Mountains and the trail systems.  She said the marketing campaign is done year around. She said Epic Rides is 
asking the Committee for $3,750.00 for supporting the venue and advertising of the event.  She said Dennis 
Ahlman had been the Town appointed liaison, and said a new liaison would be needed.  She said the Town 
Manager had been a knowledgeable resource and Town supporter.  Vice Chairman Girardi said it is Ad and Pro 
money and said she would like an Ad and Pro member to be the liaison. Committeemember Dahnk agreed.  
Crystal O’Donnell suggested Committeemember Berman since the event would be held at PLAC&S.  
Committeemember Berman volunteered to be the liaison.   
 
VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI MOVED TO FUND $3,750.00 TO EPIC RIDES FOR THE TOUR OF THE WHITE 
MOUNTAINS.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED 4-0 WITH 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN ABSTAINING. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
REQUESTING FUNDING OF $1,000.00 FOR TOURISM SERVICES-POSTAGE FOR MARCH 2015 THROUGH JULY 
2015: 
 
Chairman Petersen said Committeemember Dahnk would be unable to vote and said there would not be a 
quorum.  He said this agenda item would be postponed and would be on the August 2015 agenda.   
 



ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Sam John said the budget for July was spent on OOTV, banner ads and the July Sonoran Living TV segment. He 
said the August budget decreased and said it would be $7,500.00 for OOTV.  He said OOTV would end for the 
season in September 2015. He said he would not have banner ads run in August or September.  He said he 
would suggest running banner ads heavily during the ski season and then begin again in May 2016.  He said 
the banner ads had been effective.     
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MADE A MOTION TO SPEND $10,000.00 FOR ADVERTISING FOR THE MONTH 
OF AUGUST 2015.  VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI SECONDED THE MOTION.  
 
Chairman Petersen asked if there was any additional comments or discussion. Committeemember Berman 
said numbers drop significantly when school starts.  He said if the various school start times effect the entire 
Town would it be feasible to advertise more in August and September.  A discussion ensued regarding school 
starting effecting the tourism.  Mr. John said traditionally August advertising had been done with a push at the 
end of the month going into Labor Day weekend.  Mr. Vuolo said people visit the Mountain due to the 
weather conditions and fall is a beautiful time to visit.  Committeemember Berman said the Committee needs 
to start planning now for the one to two week fall school break.  Vice Chairman Girardi said it would be better 
to have more advertising in August since the weather is better here than in the Valley.  She said she would 
rather have additional advertising in August and not in May and said the weather in May is not always the 
best.  She said it is always hot in Phoenix in August and would be cooler here.  Mr. John said the advertising 
push started in May and would end in September.  He said it would help in the October opportunities.  He said 
the extra push in August would allow for the frequency through the season.  Mr. John said another 
opportunity would be to do a banner ad campaign for fall break.  He said it would say “Spend your Fall Break 
in Pinetop-Lakeside.”  Committeemember Krigbaum asked for an explanation of the ad content and is the 
content different for July versus September.  Mr. John said promoting different events would be the difference 
and said the weather is the main focus  and outdoor events for August.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK AMENDED HER MOTION TO SPEND $12,500.00 FOR ADVERTISING FOR THE 
MONTH OF AUGUST.  VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI SECONDED THE MOTION AND MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY.   
 
Mr. John gave an update on the website, OOTV, Facebook and OOIA statistics.  He said the cost for the 
Facebook competition was minimal but the value was great.  He said he would like to do another Facebook 
contest for the winter season.  Mr. John said the website facelift is almost done.  Chairman Petersen said Vice 
Chairman Girardi and Committeemember Dahnk would be on the website committee and said they would be 
contacting the Town Manager regarding merging the Town dot gov website with the Visit Pinetop-Lakeside 
website.  He said the website committee would look into merging or not merging, and said there is $12,500.00 
earmarked for the website.  He said he would like a decision made and the money spent by January 1, 2016.  
Mr. John said Crystal O’Donnell and Chairman Petersen would be in the July Sonoran Living segment.  He said 
there is a future Sonoran Living opportunity to have the segment filmed onsite in Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said 
the cost would be $5,000.00 for a three minute segment.  He said it could be combined with the Ad and Pro 
Committee, Sunrise and Hon-Dah and said then he would be able to own the entire segment. He said it would 
be three minutes with each and the cost would be shared.  Chairman Petersen said local restaurant and 
businesses could also do a three minute segment.  He said the more businesses to participate the lower the 
cost for Ad and Pro and he said Ad and Pro would still own the segment. He said he is on the Sunrise board, 
and said they are open to ideas and sharing. Councilmember Irwin asked if the potential partners had been 
approached.  Chairman Petersen said he had discussed the opportunity with Sunrise and said he would be 



approaching Hon-Dah.  He said My Sisters Can’t Cook are interested is doing a food segment on the show.  Mr. 
John said this would be for a future segment and not for the July segment.   
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON FESTIVALS, 
ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Ms. O’Donnell said her staff called local retailers to ask them how the 2015 Fourth of July sales compared to 
the 2014 Fourth of July sales.  She said the Musicfest went great this year, and said money was made.  
Committeemember Dahnk said the Managing Editor from the Phoenix Magazine was in Town during the 
weekend of the Musicfest.  She said she was here to do an article on the Best Cabin Region in the US.  She said 
she stayed at Lazy Oaks in a cabin on the lake and said she went horseback riding, visited the Nature Center 
and spent time with the Mayor.  She said she had a fantastic weekend, and said she would be back to do more 
articles on Pinetop-Lakeside.  She said the article would be in the August edition and the Chamber would 
receive copies of the magazine.  Ms. O’Donnell said the Best Cabin Region banners were received.  Chairman 
Petersen said he would contact the Town Manager regarding hanging the banner over the highway.  He said 
the Town Manager said she would dedicate staff to propose the item to the Town Council for approval.  Ms. 
O’Donnell said she, Chairman Petersen, Vice Chairman Girardi and Committeemember Dahnk would be 
attending the Regional Economic Development in Clarkdale, AZ.  She said Mr. Vuolo would be speaking at the 
conference.  (Joe said if John needed some clothes he would go with him to JC Penney and help him pick some 
out. Joe really said this. Then he said he and Crystal shopped together at JC Penney for their outfits for the TV 
segment.)  Ms. O’Donnell said she is on the Show Low White Mountain Leadership committee and said she 
would make sure they visit the Nature Center.  She said the Birdman Pod Cast is now recording at the 
Chamber of Commerce.  She said Saturday, July 18, 2015 is the Summit Health dinner Gala.  She said Saturday, 
August 1, 2015 the Chamber and the Police Department would be doing another Town clean-up.  She said the 
concentration would be on trach pick-up and weeds.  She said Chairman Petersen would be mailing letters to 
businesses that need help and ask for the business owner permission to clean the property.  She said it would 
be from noon until 4:00 p.m. and said everyone would meet at the Police Department.      
 
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
Mr. Vuolo said Medieval Mayhem had a large attendance on Saturday, and had grown since last year.  He said 
last weekend there was a senior softball tournament in Town and twenty-one teams attended. He said the 
weekend of July 18th there would be an Aquatic Discovery at the White Mountain Nature Center and Big 
Springs.  He said a soccer camp would be held at Mountain Meadow, and said there would be over one 
hundred participants.  He said the Christmas Cabin Guild would be held in the Town gym from July 30th 
through August 1, 2015.  He said all of the crafters are local.  He said on Saturday, August 8, 2015 the Annual 
Sheriff Posse Barbeque would be held at Town Hall.  He said Pioneer Days would be held at Woodland Lake 
Park on August 1, 2105.  He said the LDS Church puts on the event, and said there would be breakfast and 
children activities.  He said there would be two additional disc golf tournaments in August.  He said most of 
the players are from out of town. He said he is now a Nature Center board member.    
 
ITEM NO 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Committeemember Tilton was not in attendance and no update was given.   
 
ITEM NO. 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 



Chairman Petersen said there was no one in attendance from Sunrise or Hon-Dah for an update. He said he 
attended a Sunrise board meeting and said the 3D Shootout had one hundred and fifty more participants than 
last year.  He said the amount of tickets sold for the firework show on the Fourth of July was doubled the 
amount compared to 2014.  He said Sunrise is looking for sponsors for next year’s fireworks show.  He said the 
Sunrise summer activities are open Friday through Monday.  He said in May 2015 the activities rentals totaled 
$69,000.00 compared to $24,000.00 in May 2014.  He said the zip line at Sunrise would be open by the end of 
September 2015.  He said they anticipant $300,000.00 in revenues from the zip line.  He said Sunrise would 
have summer activities from May through October, weather permitting. He said Sunrise is looking for a 
Marketing Director, and said they would have someone attend the Ad and Pro Meeting next month.  He said 
the Disc Golf course would be expanding and said they plan to have tournaments.      
 
 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m.  
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 


